SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 28, 2012
8:44 a. m

8:44: 28 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Hoffrman <called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:44 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Carl Rose, Executive Director, Al aska Association of School
Boards; Joy Lyon, Alaska Association for the Education of
Young Children; Richard Mnkman, Chairman, Juneau Dougl as
Hi gh School Site Council; Emly Coate, Coordinator, Parents

as Teacher s- Juneau; Lynn WIlians, Oaner , WIIlians
Educational Consulting; Pam Mieller-GQiy, Southeast Al aska
| ndependent Living; Kim Mx, Infant Learning Program

REACH, Bruce Botel ho, Myor, Cty & Borough of Juneau;
Allison Smith, Teacher, Juneau School District; Denise
Doni el l o, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on Aging;
Blue Shibler, Admnistrator, Di scovery Preschool; Kathie
Wasser man, Executive Director, Al aska Minicipal League;
Sarah Johnson, Student, Juneau-Douglas Hi gh School; Dan
Johnson, Self; Andi Story, Vice-President, Juneau School
Board; Mary Hakal a, Coordinator, K-12 Science, Technol ogy,
Engi neering, and Mathematics (STEM Initiative; Abel Bult-
Ito, Professor of Biology, University of Al aska Fairbanks;
Representative Bill Thonas.



PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Li nda Conover, Self, WMat-Su; Freeman Kingeekuk, Self, Mat-
Su; Cheryl Jackson, Wasilla; Jeffrey Lanbe, Instructor,
Process Technol ogy, Kenai Peninsula College; Shawn Laplin,
Assi stant Professor, Mechanical Technology, University O
Al aska, Kenai Ri ver Canpus; Rich  Kochi s, Assi st ant
Professor, Electronics, University O Al aska, Kenai; Tom
Dal rynpl e, Co-Chair, Business And Industry, Kenai Peninsula
Coll ege, Soldotna; Doug Giffin, Cty Mnager, Palner;
Anber Chanpagne, Head Start, Rural Cap, Tok; Karen Page,
Head Start, Rural Cap, Tok; John Luick, Student, Kenai

Peninsula College, Kenai; John Landua, Teacher, Kenai
Peninsula College, Kenai; Christine Pichotta, Parents As
Teachers, Rural Cap, Seward; Bryron Kashevarof, Self,

Kodi ak; Cera Choy, Self, Anchorage; Mary C. Nanuwak, Self,
Anchor age; Maureen Pintner, Self, Anchorage; Suzi Pearson,
Executive Director, Abused Wnen's Aid in Cisis (AW O;
Ni kol e Nel son, Executive Director, Al aska Legal Services
Corporation; Geg Roczicka, Self, Bethel; Melissa Pickle,
Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA), Eagle River;
Kristin Rainstad, Parents and Teachers Director, Rural CAP,
Anchorage; Patrice Giffin, Director, Head Start, Rural
CAP, Eagle River; Allen M Bai | ey, Fam |y Lawyer,
Anchor age; Zoya X Ponomareva, Volunteer, Anmerican Cancer
Soci ety, Cancer Action Network, Anchorage; R ck Adans,
Assi stant Professor, Kenai Peninsula College, University of
Al aska  Extension, Kenai ; Jenni fer Char vet , Resour ce
Navigator, Alaska Brain Injury Network, Palnmer; Kanaree
Altaffer, Self, Anchorage; Pat Ferucci, Self, Anchorage;
Amanda Metivier, Facing Foster Care in Alaska, Anchorage;
Jonat han Teeters, Best Beginnings, Anchorage; M ke Tucker,
Al aska Works Partnership, Anchorage; Heidi Frost, Executive
Director, Statew de I|ndependent Living Council, Anchorage;
Arliss Sturgul ewski, Self, Anchorage; Sheila Barrett, Self,
Anchorage; Melinda Myers, Thread Al aska, Anchorage; Regina
Mant euf el , Executive Director, Back to Wrk Network,
Anchorage; Karen Matthias, Volunteer, Anchorage |nagination
Li brary, Anchorage; Danny Gay, Board of Directors, Al aska
Al zheiner's Resource Agency, Anchorage; Barbara deary,
Self, Anchorage; Jackie Brunton, Board Menber, Al aska
Al zhei mer's Resource Agency, Anchorage; Nancy K Holtry,
Sel f, Fai rbanks; Judith Ranps, Self, Fai r banks; Todd
Bri nkman, Research Assistant Professor, University of
Al aska Fai rbanks, Fairbanks; Kevin H Il nmer-Pegram Student,
University of Al aska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Taber Rehbaum
Arctic Alliance for People, Fairbanks; Linda Hapsmth,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



Academ ¢ Advising Center, University of Alaska Fairbanks,
Fai rbanks; Sean Topkok, University of Alaska Fairbanks,
Fai r banks; G nny  Rednond, Director, St udent Suppor t
Services, University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Sara
Smth, Academc Coordinator, Student Support Services,
University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Dana Kinzy,
| nt ensi ve Advi sor, Student Support Services, University of

Al aska Fai r banks, Fai r banks; El sie Vent , Cty
Adm nistrator, Gty Council, Cty of Huslia, Fairbanks;
Em |y Vockeroth, | magi nation Library, Fai r banks; Gara

Bridwell, Self, Fairbanks; Nelle Andrews, Program Manager,
Rural Apprenticeship Qutreach Program Fairbanks; Shirley
WIllians, Self, Fairbanks; Luke Hopkins, Myor, Fairbanks
North  Star Bor ough; Ri chard Carl son, Superi nt endent ,
Klawock City School District; Mchelle Bricker, Self,
Sitka; Naom M chal sen, Executive Director, Wnen in Safe
Hones, Ketchi kan; Caroline Smth, Mayor, City of Al eknagik;
Deserie Bond, Self, D llingham Ken Bergman, Self, Homer;
Katy Adans, Self, Honmer; Val Angasan, Deputy Director,
Bri st ol Bay Housi ng Aut hori ty, D |'1'i ngham Janette
Burnhoff, Self, Sitka; James Swift, Conmmercial Fisherman,
Sitka; Lisa Busch, Director, Sitka Sound Science Center,
Sit ka; Jerry Dzugan, Alaska Marine Safety Education
Associ ation, Sitka; Tomi Marsh, Self, Sitka; Tahnee Curran,
Self, Sitka; Robert Purvis, Board Menber, Southeast Al aska
| ndependent Living, Sitka; Emly Guthrie, Self, Ketchikan;
Beth LaCrosse, Self, Ketchikan; Kevin Gadsey, Advocate,
Sout heast Al aska | ndependent Living, Ketchikan; Bill Auger,
Pr esi dent, United Sout heast Gllnetters Associ ati on,
Ket chi kan; Mel ani e Bahnke, Vice-President, Kawerak, None;
Lily Ray, UAF Resilience and Adaptation Program None;
El i zabeth K Johnson, Chai r - per son, None | magi nation
Li brary, None; Juanita Smith, North Slope Borough Health
Departnent, Barrow, Joseph Dingman, Self, Barrow, Sonia
Handf orth Kone, Unalaska City School District, Unalaska;
M a Konme, Student, Unalaska City School, Unal aska; Marybeth
Green, Early Childhood Coordinator, Lower Kuskokwi m School
District (LKSD), Bethel; April Blevins, Self, Bethel; Mary
C. Pete, Canpus D rector, Kuskokwim Canpus, University of
Al aska, Bethel; Mchelle Dewitt, Executive Director, Tundra
Wnen's Coalition (TW), Bethel; Cecilia Mrtz, Self,
Bet hel; Mnica Charles Leinberger, Self, Bethel; Anthony
Craval ho, Self, Kotzebue; Debby Edwardson, President, North
Sl ope Borough School District Board of Education, Barrow,
Peggy Cowan, Superintendent of Schools, North Sl ope Borough
School District; Polly Tocktoo, Chairperson, Brevig M ssion
| magi nation Library, Brevig Mssion; Jeanne GCerhardt-Cyruf,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



Sel f, Kayana; Bridget Aline, Board Menber, Alzheiner's

Resource of Alaska, Bethel; Judith Johnson, Al zheiner's
Resource of Al aska, Anchorage; Shirly Mrquardt, Gty of
Unal aska, Unal aska; Marjorie Strauss, Self, Bethel; N cki
Shel t on, Tr ai ner, Parents as Teachers, Hoonabh; Dave

Tal erico, WMayer, Denali Borough, Healy; Jeanette Davis,
| ndependent Living, Honer; Anita Van Dyck, Self, Sitka;
Al avini Lata, Self, Juneau; Ron Johnson, Self, Fairbanks;
Francis Kelly, Self, Anchorage; Carrol Lyberger, Self,
Anchor age.

SUMVARY
CSHB 284(FIN) APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

CSHB 284(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

CSHB 285(FIN) APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

CSHB 285(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

8:45:36 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman stated that the two mnute tinme limt for
testifiers would be strictly adhered to and discussed the
nmeeti ng' s agenda.

#hb284
#hb285
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 284(FI N

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain progr ans, capitalizing funds, amendi ng
appropri ations, and naking reappropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 285(FI N

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nmental health program and providing for
an effective date."

JUNEAU

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



8:46:41 AM

Senator Egan reiterated that testinmony would be linmted to
two mnutes. He referenced a nmass emmil that was rel eased
by the governor and offered that it suggested that the
Senate Finance Subconmittee on Education and Early
Devel opnent had di senfranchised Al aska's yout h. He
expl ai ned that the subcommttee had never inplied that the
Al aska Performance Schol arship (APS) program was not good
for Aaska's Children, but that it did believe that
students with financial needs, who were seeking an Al askan
education, should get help. He related that the governor
had promised not to touch the $400 mllion that the

| egi sl ature had put towards future endownents until a bil
setting the rules for the fund had passed. He opined that
the governor had walked away from the bill during the

current year and had effectively made the |egislature "eat"
the funding. He believed that the governor's prom se and
refusal to work with the Senate was what stood between the
class of 2012 and the APS program He shared that the
Senat e appl auded Governor Parnell for the APS program but
that Alaska needed to provide for students who were
financially disadvantaged. He comunicated that the Senate
would work with the governor to keep the promse of a
responsi bl e funding plan for the class of 2012.

8:48: 54 AM

CARL ROSE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA ASSQOCI ATI ON OF SCHOOL
BOARDS, spoke in strong support of increased funding for
the Base Student Allocation (BSA). He referenced the |large
anount of noney that had been added to different state
agencies and prograns. He pointed out that the governor's

budget included $610 nmillion for the retirement systens,
$400 million for exploration credits, $66 mllion for |abor
contracts, $45 mllion for fuel and utilities, $100 nmllion
for agency operations and nmaintenance, and $29 nillion for
the Goose Creek project. He observed that education would
only receive $62 mllion if it got an increase in the BSA
out of that $62 million, $8 mllion would be allocated to

APS and $23 nmillion would be for nmmjor naintenance. He
wonder ed why education was being singled out when the state
was fundi ng ot her agenci es.

8:51: 33 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



JOY LYON, ALASKA ASSOCI ATION FOR THE EDUCATION OF YOUNG
CHI LDREN, wurged her support for the Best Beginnings'
partnership with Imagination Library and the Parents as
Teachers program she requested an increase to the proposed
budget request for the Best Beginnings' partnerships to
$500, 000 from $250,000. She also spoke in favor of the
$250,000 for Parents as Teachers that was currently
included in the House budget. She stated that Juneau had
seen a 10 percent increase in kindergarten readiness rates
and that it was one of the first comunities to start the
| magi nation Library program

8:53:48 AM

Rl CHARD MONKMAN, CHAI RVAN, JUNEAU DOUGLAS HI GH SCHOOL SITE
COUNCI L, expressed strong support of increased funding for
the BSA. He stated that education costs had increased and
nmentioned that the high school was struggling to maintain
the courses that it currently had. He pointed out that the
hi gh school was only able to offer one foreign |anguage
course due to the declining budget, but that it used to
of fer four such courses. He referenced a chart show ng that
Al askan students ranked |ast anong the 50 states in college
success. He pointed out that Al askan students' |ack of
success in college was a direct result of mniml funding
to the education system

8:56: 07 AM

EM LY COATE, COORDI NATOR, PARENTS AS TEACHERS- JUNEAU, spoke
in support of funding for the Parents as Teachers program
and related that it worked to enpower parents, strengthen
famlies, and to inprove children's school readi ness.

8:56: 39 AM

LYNN WLLIAMS, OWER, WLLIAVMS EDUCATI ONAL CONSULTI NG
testified in strong support of increased funding for the
BSA. She related that increases in the costs of
transportation, nedical services, and fuel were taking the
focus away from the teachers. She shared that quality
teachers made the biggest difference in a child s education
and that the state needed to invest nore funding in its
teachers. She shared a personal story about how 15 m nutes
of wviolin lessons had helped inprove students' focus,
cooperation, and ability to follow directions.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



8:58:39 AM

PAM MUELLER- GUY, SOUTHEAST ALASKA | NDEPENDENT LI VI NG spoke
in support of increasing the $200,000 in funding for
Sout heast Al aska | ndependent Living (SAIL). She stated that
SAIL provided help with transportation expenses, housing,
technol ogy services, and outreach services. She concluded
that SAIL was good at adapting to the individual needs of
its clients and was very effective at outreaching services
to potential consumers.

9:00: 26 AM

KIM M X, | NFANT LEARNI NG PROGRAM REACH, urged her strong
support of continued funding for the Best Beginnings and
Parents as Teachers prograns. She shared her strong support
of the two prograns and stated that past funding had hel ped
the field of early chil dhood devel opnent. She advocated an
increase in funding for the follow ng year.

9: 00: 59 AM

BRUCE BOTELHO MAYOR, CITY & BOROUGH OF JUNEAU, spoke on
behalf of state revenue sharing and particular supported
the measure in Section 24(f) of the bill. He furthered that
the measure would help strengthen |ocal governnents and
shared that the increasing costs of energy was a major
issue for the city of Juneau. He pointed out that there had
been a 15 percent increase in electricity costs and a 30
percent increase in fuel costs over the last tw years. He
expressed appreciation for the treatnent of revenue sharing
in the | egislation.

9:02: 39 AM

Senator Egan noted that Juneau was a second hone for many
peopl e and thanked Mayor Botel ho for making the community a
hospi tabl e place to be.

9:03: 09 AM

ALLI SON SM TH, TEACHER, JUNEAU SCHOOL DI STRICT, expressed
strong support of increased funding for the BSA and thanked
the commttee for its support of SB 171. She related that
an increase in funding would keep schools innovated and
current with technol ogy and programr ng. She nentioned that
increased funding would greatly benefit the Elenentary Art

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



program specialist staff, special education staff, and
cultural paraprofessional educators. She noted that an
increase in the BSA would also enable the district to
mai ntain the student to teacher ratio and would hel p keep
cl ass sizes small.

9:05: 37 AM

DENI SE DONI ELLO, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COWM SSI ON ON
AG NG spoke in support of the proposed funding increnments
for senior in-hone services, adult day prograns, and the
Al aska Conpl ex Behavi or Coll aborative. She stated that the
seni or grant prograns hel ped seniors maintain their health,
i ndependence, and ability to live at honme. She pointed out
that the cost of nursing hone placenent was $250, 000
annual ly. She noted that the collaborative was an effort by
the Division of Behavioral Health to help people wth
inmpairnments that led to challenging behaviors. She stated
that the collaborative helped people wth Al zheiner's
di sease, denenti a, devel opnent al di sabilities, ment al
illnesses, and traumatic brain injuries and concluded that
the services were very inportant to residents of pioneer
hones.

9:07: 33 AM

BLUE SHI BLER, ADM NI STRATOR, DI SCOVERY PRESCHOOL, urged
continued support for Best Beginnings and related that the
preschool had secured Best Beginnings MN grants for four
of its teachers. She furthered that the grant program
provi ded teachers technical training, funding for new
equi pnent, and directly inpacted early chil dhood prograns.

9:08: 34 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MJUNI Cl PAL
LEAGUE, testified in support of the supplenentary | anguage
in SB 97 that addressed increases in energy costs. She
shared her appreciation for the Senate's efforts and
poi nted out t hat energy costs were "killing" t he
muni ci palities.

9:09: 24 AM

SARAH JCHNSON, STUDENT, JUNEAU-DOUGLAS H GH SCHOOL, spoke
in support of the APS program and related that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



scholarships were a great notivator for her to focus,
achieve high scores in school, and attend college in
Al aska. She concluded that the APS program was a great
opportunity for her.

9:10: 34 AM

DAN JOHNSON, SELF, testified in support of the APS program
and stated that the program had been a great notivator for
his child. He shared that there were many distractions in
school and that the scholarship program kept students
focused for <college. He pointed out that there were
objections to the exclusion of needs-based scholarships in
the legislation, but stated that his perspective as a
parent was different. He observed that children could
succeed on their own nerits and nmake parents proud.

9:11: 49 AM

ANDI  STORY, VICE-PRESIDENT, JUNEAU SCHOOL BOARD, urged
support of an increase for education funding and shared
that the board had worked hard to be accountable to
citizens for increasing graduation rates, renoving budget
waste, elimnating the achievenment gap between students,
and for making each dollar count. She pointed out that the
board appreciated the funding for its Career and Technica
Educati on program and retirenment systens. She stated that
the Juneau School District would be forced to cut $5.8
mllion under the proposed budget, which would result in
the loss of 65 jobs. The Juneau Econom c Devel opnment
Council (JEDC) estinmated that the job |osses would result
in a negative inpact of $11.5 million to the comunity.

9:14: 05 AM

MARY HAKALA, COORDI NATOR, K-12 SClI ENCE, TECHNOLOGY
ENG NEERI NG AND MATHEMATICS (STEM | NI Tl ATI VE, urged
support of public education funding and related that the
Juneau School District's Elenentary Art and nusic prograns
were creative, rich, and successful. She stated that Al aska
needed an increase in the BSA and shared that STEM was
openi ng opportunities for children in the state. She spoke
about FIRST Robotics and how Alaska led the nation in
participating in the program

9:16: 37 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



ABEL BULT-1TO, PROFESSOR OF BIOLOGY, UN VERSITY OF ALASKA
FAI RBANKS, expressed his support of +the University of
Al aska's budget and the STEM initiative. He nentioned that
there was an upconm ng STEM research presentation at the
Uni versity of Alaska Fairbanks by 22 students from across
the state. He further explained that the students would
present research proposals and that the top five entrants
would travel to the national conpetition in Bethesda,
Mar yl and.

9:18:37 AM
RECESSED

10: 05: 12 AM
RECONVENED

10: 06: 16 AM

KENAI, VALDEZ, KODI AK, SEWARD, NAT-SU, GLENNALLEN , TOK

LI NDA CONOVER, MAT-SU (via teleconference), urged continued
support for early education progranms such as Best
Begi nni ngs, | magi nation Library and Head Start. She
stressed that these prograns hel ped children stay in school
and succeed in life. Over 16,000 children received free
books through the Inmagination Library program Famlies
were al so strengthened through the prograns.

FREEMAN  KI NGEEKUK, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Al aska Wrks Partnership
program He was hel ped through its apprenticeship program

CHERYL  JACKSON, SELF, WASI LLA (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Al aska Legal
Services Corporation, which had helped her wth her
donesti c viol ence probl ens.

10:10: 53 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman noted that the Al aska Legal Services
Cor poration conmponent was increased by the Senate Finance
Commttee to $200 t housand above the governor's request.

JEFFREY  LAMBE, | NSTRUCTOR, PROCESS TECHNOLOGY, KENAI
PENI NSULA COLLEGE (via teleconference), urged support for
the Associate of Applied Science degree in Process
Technol ogy at the Kenai Peninsula College. He observed that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



the program had one full tinme process technol ogy instructor
and two instructors under tenporary funding. The program
was in demand and filled wthin tw hours of open
registration. He stressed the inportance of the technol ogy
program to ready students for oil and gas jobs in the Cook
Inlet and other areas of the state. He noted that the
governor had line item vetoed funding for the program over
t he | ast nunber of years and urged support.

10: 13: 02 AM

SHAWN LAPLI N, ASSI STANT PROFESSOR, MECHANI CAL TECHNCOLOGY,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA, KENAI Rl VER CAMPUS (via
tel econference), wurged support for work force devel opnent
f undi ng. He maintained that the [Process Technol ogy]
program would enable individuals to obtain enployment in
the industries. He mintained that wait |isting students
prevented them from succeedi ng.

RICH KOCH' S, ASSISTANT PROFESSOR, ELECTRONICS, UN VERSITY
OF ALASKA, KENAI (via teleconference), urged support for
the Associate of Applied Science degree in Process
Technol ogy at the Kenai Peninsula College. He stressed the
need of training for oil and gas industry jobs. Students
wer e being maxed out of the classes.

10: 15: 48 AM

TOM DALRYMPLE, CO CHAIR, BUSINESS AND |NDUSTRY, KENAI
PENI NSULA COLLEGE, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference), urged
support for the Associate of Applied Science degree in
Process Technology at the Kenai Peninsula College. He
stressed that the program supports |ocal hire.

10: 16: 52 AM

DOUG GRIFFIN, CITY MANACGER, PALMER (via teleconference),
testified in support for local governnents and state
revenue sharing. He enphasized the high costs of snow
removal, energy, health insurance premuns for enployees
and other services to citizens.

10: 18: 52 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman observed that the Senate had passed SB 97
and urged M. Giffin to express support to the House.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



AMBER  CHAMPAGNE, HEAD  START, RURAL  CAP, TOK (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for Rura
Al aska Community Action early education progranms (RurAL
CAP). She stressed the up to date information and resources
provided to fam i es.

10: 20: 24 AM

KAREN PAGE, HEAD START, RURAL CAP, TOK (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for RurAL
CAP prograns, especially the Head Start program

10: 21: 32 AM

JOHN LUl CK, STUDENT, KENAI PENI NSULA COLLEGE, KENAI (via
tel econference), urged support for the Associate of Applied
Sci ence degree in Process Technol ogy at the Kenai Peninsul a
Coll ege. He noted that he had returned to the state after
20 years to pursue the opportunities the program provided.

JOHN LANDUA, TEACHER, KENAI PENI NSULA COLLEGE, KENAI (via
tel econference), urged support for resource jobs related
prograns and the Associate of Applied Science degree in
Process Technology at the Kenai Peninsula College. He
stressed the need to maintain and expand the program

10: 24: 20 AM
AT EASE

10: 25: 57 AM
RECONVENED

CHRI STI NE PI CHOTTA, PARENTS AS TEACHERS, RURAL CAP, SEWARD
(via teleconference), spoke in support of RurAL CAP
prograns for small children and parents. She enphasi zed the
success of the programin skill achievenents.

10: 27: 17 AM
AT EASE

10: 43: 37 AM
RECONVENED

BRYRON KASHEVAROF, KODIAK (via teleconference), testified
in support of the Alaska Wrk Partnership. He stressed that
the training he received from the program would assist him
in finding work.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



10:47: 03 AM
AT EASE

1: 03: 02 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Hoffrman stressed that the public testinony should
be limted to two m nutes per person.

Co- Chair Hof f man handed the gavel over to Senator MQuire.
ANCHORAGE

1: 04: 46 PM

CERA CHOY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced
support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative $650,000
increnent to the Mental Health budget. She stated that she
had a difficult time wth enploynent and insurance due to
her son's behavioral problens. She furthered that her son
was placed in a special institution on the east coast,
because Al aska did not have the appropriate facilities to
accommodate her son's condition. She felt that Al aska
needed a specialized residential facility to encourage
vocational and educational opportunities for individuals
wi t h behavi or di sorders.

1: 06: 53 PM

MARY C. NANUWAK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support for nment al health  prograns. She
appreciated the commttee's consideration and support for
mental health treatnment progranms in rural Al aska. She
t hanked Co-Chair Hoffrman's advocacy for his constituents.
She felt that the nmental health treatnent issues were not
addressed adequately, and that the funding was available to
resolve the problens. She supposed that the violence in
Anchorage was due to the high nunber of individuals wth
nment al heal th probl ens.

1:10: 41 PM

MAUREEN PI NTNER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
voi ced support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative
$650, 000 increnent to the Mental Health budget. She was a
vol unteer parent advocate for her two children wth

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



disabilities, because her son had various behaviora

disabilities. She stated that her marriage and famly was
strained, because of the stress she faced from resolving
her son's conplex behavioral problens. She remarked that
her son referred to his recent hospital stay as "torture"

because he was assaulted in the hospital, was idle nost
days, and heavily nedi cated. She stressed the inportance of
under standing and treating conpl ex behavi oral problens.

1:14: 30 PM

SUZI PEARSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ABUSED WOMEN S AID IN
CRISIS (AWVAIC) (via teleconference), expressed support for
funding the governor's increase for donmestic violence and
sexual assault prograns. She explained that the Food Bank
of Alaska was |limted in their food resources, and her
organi zation was forced to buy food. She stressed the
pressures of high health care costs, but was grateful for
the funding for new heating and cooling systens in the
AWAI C facility in Anchorage.

1: 16: 39 PM

NI KOLE NELSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA LEGAL SERVICES
CORPORATI ON (via teleconference), urged support of funding
for the Al aska Legal Services Corporation. She explained
that the agency provided help to many vul nerable Al askans.
She announced that the corporation turned away one person
for every two people that approached them therefore the
funding would inprove the availability of the program for
nore Al askans.

1:18: 16 PM

GREG ROCZI CKA, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding for the Ofice of Subsistence
Managenent in the Departrment of Fish and Ganme, to conduct
community baseline subsistence harvest surveys for the
regional fishing hubs. He stated that he had worked on the
regul atory processes and managenent issues for natural
resources issues for 27 years. He explained that harvest
surveys had been conducted for the rural villages, but the
regi onal hubs had been overl ooked. He renarked that Bethel,
Nonme, Kotzebue, Unal aska, Kodiak, Barrow, and D llingham
were in need of harvest surveys. He felt that the |ack of
attention resulted in a large data gap. He noted that he
had served on the Board of Gane, and encountered

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



subsi stence fishing allocation issues. He thanked the
comittee for including $456,000 for harvest surveys in
Bet hel and Kotzebue, and hoped that the other communities
woul d be surveyed in the next five years.

1: 20: 24 PM

MELI SSA PI CKLE, COURT APPO NTED SPECI AL ADVOCATE (CASA),
EAGLE RIVER (via teleconference), urged an increnent of
$250,000 for the Parents as Teachers Program (PAT) in the
Rur al Community Action Programis (Rural CAP) Child
Devel opnent Program She stated that a CASA was a trained
vol unteer that advocates for children who are in state
protective custody. She explained that the children she
worked with had experienced neglect and/or abuse, and had
to be renoved from their honmes. She encouraged an increase
t he PAT funding by an additional $250,000, so nore children
and famlies could exploit the services that PAT offered

She noted that famlies and children who were enrolled in
the PAT program experienced many positive benefits. She
declared that the parents enrolled in the PAT program had
increased knowl edge of child developnment and positive
child-rearing practices; and had fewer docunented cases of
chil d abuse and negl ect.

1:22: 35 PM

KRI STI N RAI NSTAD, PARENTS AND TEACHERS DI RECTOR, RURAL CAP,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), supported the $2 mllion
for addi ti onal school district Pre-K prograns. She
encouraged the commttee to consider an increnent that
woul d support parents and their role in preparing their
children for success in school. She explained that the PAT
program was a highly effective, evi dence-based early
chi | dhood education and fam |y support program that had a
successful track-record in Al aska. She noted that there
were several famlies on the PAT wait-list that could begin
receiving services at a very nodest cost. She explained
that the PAT program provided two personal visits and one
group socialization opportunity per nonth for 92 children
and their famlies in Anchorage, Ket chi kan, Sewar d,
Tanacross, and Tok.

1: 24: 26 PM

PATRICE GRIFFIN, D RECTOR, HEAD START, RURAL CAP, EAGLE
RI VER (via teleconference), testified in support of funding

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



for all Alaska Head Start. She thanked the committee for
the $2 mllion that was currently allotted for DEED that
supported Head Start prograns. She explained that there
were currently 1,000 children on the wait I|ist for Head
Start services in Al aska. She asserted that Head Start was
facing the possibility of decreased funding, because of
flat-1ine funding. She encouraged the conmittee to increase
funding for PAT and Head Start prograns.

1: 25: 25 PM

ALLEN M BAI LEY, FAM LY LAWYER, ANCHORACGE (via
tel econference), urged support of funding for the Al aska
Legal Services Corporation. He explained that the entity
provi ded help to nmany vul nerabl e Al askans. He stressed that
the only way for the courts to provide donestic violence
protection, was to provide the victimw th conveni ent | egal
services. He pointed out that nost famly court cases were
rel ated to donestic violence or sexual abuse.

1: 27: 26 PM

ZOYA X. PONOVAREVA, VOLUNTEER, AMERI CAN CANCER SOCI ETY,
CANCER ACTI ON NETWORK, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of tobacco-use prevention funding. She
thanked the commttee for prior funding for tobacco-use
prevention in the past. She remarked that tobacco-use
directly caused cancer, obesity, and other severe health
pr obl ens.

1: 28: 33 PM

RI CK ADAMS, ASSI STANT PROFESSOR, KENAI PEN NSULA COLLECGE
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA EXTENSI ON, KENAI (via teleconference),
testified in support of $469,000 for the UAA Process
Technology Jobs for Resource Developnment program He
specifically urged support of the funding for the Anchorage
Expansion Site in Kenai River location. He stated that with
the addition of another staff nenber, classes could be
offered every senester, and elective courses could be
avai | abl e.

1: 30: 59 PM

JENNI FER CHARVET, RESOURCE NAVI GATOR, ALASKA BRAIN | NJURY
NETWORK, PALMER (via teleconference), voiced support for
t he Conpl ex Behavioral Collaborative $650,000 increnent to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



the Mental Health budget. She encouraged support of funding
the treatnent for those with brain injuries. She renmarked
that those who did not receive the proper treatnent for
brain injuries often end up in jail or honel ess.

Vice-Chair McCQuire passed the gavel to Senator Ellis.

1: 33: 27 PM

KAMAREE ALTAFFER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
voi ced support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative
$650, 000 increnent to the Mental Health budget. She stated
that she had worked with adults who had chronic behavior
di sorders. She noted that young children wth behavioral
i ssues and seni ors with Al zhei mer' s wer e often
institutionalized, with a high cost to the state. She felt
that the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative could provide
| ocal, hel pful, and appropriate treatnents.

1:35:17 PM

PAT FERUCCI, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced
support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative $650,000
increnent to the Mental Health budget. She explained that
her husband was a resident of the Anchorage Pioneer Hone.
She expressed gratitude of the capable care-givers at the
Anchorage Pioneer Hone, but felt that her husband was not
receiving consistent treatnent and care. She continued to
share various incidents about her husband's care at the
Anchorage Pioneer Hone, and felt that the Conplex
Behavi or al Col | aborati ve could provi de appropriate
education and support for Alzheiner's patients' care-
gi vers.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, entered the room

1: 38: 59 PM

AVANDA METI VI ER, FACING FOSTER CARE | N ALASKA, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding
foster care prograns in Al aska. She urged the addition of
$250, 000 for the Education and Training Voucher Fund. She
explained that children who transition out of the state
foster care system were at risk of honeless, early
pregnancy, and noving into the crimnal justice system She
expl ai ned that the Education and Trai ning Voucher Fund was
funded by a federal grant, but there were restrictions on

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



the federal noney. She felt that the additional funds from
the state would provide nore flexibility for young people
in rural areas who mght not have access to accredited
pr ogr ans.

1: 40: 30 PM

JONATHAN TEETERS, BEST BEG NNI NGS, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econf erence), ur ged conti nued support for Best
Begi nni ngs. He supported an additional request of $500,000
to the Best Beginnings program He stated that Best
Begi nnings was a public/private partnership, who currently
received significant funding from the state. He felt that
Best Beginnings had a significant inpact in rural and urban
areas of Alaska. He reported that there was a video and
book produced by Best Beginnings entitled, "Babies on
Track"” that was intended for parents of children ages zero
to 2-years-old. He stated that the video highlighted
techniques for parents to prepare their children for
school .

1:42:41 PM

M KE TUCKER, ALASKA WORKS PARTNERSHI P, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding the Rural
Apprenticeship Qutreach program and Al aska weatherization
training. He stated that he was an apprentice during the
buil di ng of the Trans-Al aska Pipeline construction, and was
currently a carpenter. He pointed out that he was a |ead-
instructor in rural Al aska for Al aska Wrks Partnership,
whi ch had been funded primarily by the Denali Comm ssion.
He remarked that Denali Conm ssion funds were declining,
and stressed that rural job training needed to continue
with state funds.

1:45: 04 PM

HEI DI FROST, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR,  STATEW DE | NDEPENDENT
LI VING COUNCI L, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of $250,000 for independent |iving prograns, and
encouraged the conmittee to provide an additional $250,000
for assisted living centers. She expl ained that independent
living centers were different from assisted |iving centers.
| ndependent living centers provided information, technical
assistance, and nursing hone transition for people wth
disabilities regardless of age or disability. Assisted
living hones were progressive centers of care for

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



i ndividuals, elders, and individuals wth disabilities
regardl ess of age, that provided varying levels of care at
varying |l evels of costs.

1:47: 03 PM

ARLI SS STURGULEWSKI, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of $175,000 for Alaska Mving |nmage
Preservation Association (AM PA). She explained that there
was a large archive of video and archive in the consortium
library. She encouraged continued support of AMPA  She
felt that there was good cooperation with the University of
Alaska and AM PA, and the program should continue wth
addi tional funding.

1: 48: 39 PM

SHEI LA BARRETT, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), urged
conti nued support for Best Beginnings. She stated that Best
Begi nni ngs was a good program and encouraged the commttee
to listen to the former testifiers who al so supported Best
Begi nnings. She stressed that it was very inportant for
young people to enter kindergarten prepared for school.

1:51: 03 PM

VEL| NDA MYERS, THREAD ALASKA, ANCHORACE (via
tel econference), testified in support of early childhood
education funding. She encouraged funding for PAT. She
referred to a docunent entitled, "Investing in Alaska's
Young Children"” (copy on file), which outlined itens that
woul d help young children and famlies across Al aska. She
stated that the itenms would support conmmunity engagenent
and early literacy efforts by adding $500,000 for Best
Begi nni ngs.

1:52: 36 PM

REG NA MANTEUFEL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, BACK TO WORK NETWORK
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for prograns encouraging disenfranchised wonen to
enter the workforce. She explained that there was a
correlation between adequate drug and alcohol counseling
and proper workforce reentry. She remarked that adequate
clothing should be available to those wonen who were
entering the workforce.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



1:55: 56 PM

KAREN MATTHI AS, VOLUNTEER, ANCHORAGE | MAG NATI ON LI BRARY,
ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), urged continued support for
Best Begi nnings. She highlighted the extraordinary work the
Best Beginnings provided across the state. She noted that
t he program provi ded educational tools at an early age. She
felt that the Anchorage Imagination Library was a val uable
pr ogram to help children becone readers and feel
passi onat e about |earning and readi ng.

1:57:51 PM

DANNY GRAY, BQOARD OF DI RECTORS, ALASKA ALZHEI MER S RESOURCE
AGENCY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged support of
funding for the Al aska Alzheiner's Resource Agency. He
noted that the program funding was not yet in the budget,
but there was an SBS increase of 10 percent over 20 years.
He encouraged the addition of $250,000 for the Al zheiner's
Education Network to the operating budget.

2:00: 14 PM
AT EASE

2:14:11 PM
RECONVENED

BARBARA CLEARY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of increasing funding from $250,00 to
$360, 000 for sexually transmitted disease (STD) testing and
education. She explained the <chlanmydia could lead to
infertility and inflammation issues.

2:16: 11 PM

JACKI E BRUNTON, BOARD MEMBER, ALASKA ALZHEI MER S RESOURCE
AGENCY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), encouraged funding
for education and support of Alzheiner's Resource of
Al aska. She remarked that her nother suffered from
Al zheiner's for nmany years, and appreciated the education
that she received from the Al zheiner's Resource of Al aska

She stressed the inperative nature of additional funding

so the education can continue to expand across the state.

2:19: 20 PM

Acting Chair Ellis handed the gavel to Co-Chair Hoffman.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



Co- Chair Hof f man di scussed t he agenda.

2:19:26 PM
RECESSED

2:33: 07 PM
RECONVENED

FAI RBANKS

2:33:44 PM

NANCY K. HOLTRY, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of increased funding for the Al aska
Legal Services Corporation (ALSC). She related that ALSC
had hel ped her with a donestic violence protective order,
litigation of custody issues, and divorce proceedings. She
referenced a sanple study that polled 100 wonen in
Fai rbanks and stated that out of those wonen, 57 percent
were either physically or sexually assaulted.

JUDI TH RAMOS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), urged
support for the University of Alaska Fairbanks' Resilience
and Adaptation Program (RAP) and the Indigenous Studies
program and shared that she was currently pursuing a PHD in
i ndi genous studies. She related her thankfulness for the
RAP's funding; furthernore, the program gave students the
opportunity to collaborate with their peers from other
di sci plines and had graduated about 21 PHD and 15 master's
students. She discussed the Indigenous Studies programs
overcrowding issue and related that the funding would be
used to increase staff and faculty for the program

2:36: 27 PM

TODD BRI NKMAN, RESEARCH ASSI STANT PROFESSOR, UNIVERSITY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), expressed
his support for RAP and stated that it was an
internationally recognized program that trained students to
contribute to the social, ecological, and economc well-
being of Al aska. He shared that RAP had supported the
conpletion of his degree in wldlife biology and warned
that the program was in jeopardy. He further explained that
the funding for RAP would sunset this year and urged for
t he passage of the proposed funding for RAP in the FY 13
operating budget. He pointed out that 90 percent of RAP

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



graduates stayed in Alaska. He furthered that RAP was an
established and successful program and that "pulling the
plug" on it would be a huge blow to the state.

2:38: 34 PM

KEVIN  H LLMER- PEGRAM STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY OF  ALASKA
FAI RBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of continued funding for RAP and shared that he was
currently a PHD student in the program He related that the
program was focused specifically on Alaska and that it was
producing cutting edge science ainmed at achi evi ng
sust ai nable solutions to real world problens. He concl uded
that the program had been vetted by the National Science
Foundation for the past decade and had a strong student and
facul ty | eadershi p.

2:40:43 PM

TABER REHBAUM ARCTI C ALLI ANCE FOR PEOCPLE, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed support of increasing funding
for the Human Services Community Matching Gants and the
Community Initiative Gants and explained that the grant
funds were a vital resource for inportant state prograns.
She furthered that the grant progranms were community driven
and allowed recipient agencies to |everage additional
funds. She pointed that in FY 11, state funding of $350,510
to Fairbanks had resulted in $6 mllion of |everaged funds.
She concluded that the grant prograns were efficient,
accountable, saved the state noney, and inproved the
quality of life in Alaskan comruniti es.

2:42: 33 PM

LI NDA HAPSM TH, ACADEM C ADVI SING CENTER, UN VERSITY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), testified
in support of the $600,000 in funding for increasing
graduation rates at the University of Al aska. She expl ai ned
that the increment would focus on hel ping students who were
nost at risk for graduating and stated that the funding
woul d be used to inprove services to students. She pointed
out that students who received specialized advising
services were nore likely to graduate and be successful.

2:44: 02 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



SEAN TOPKOK, UNIVERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed support of funding for the
Al aska Native Know edge Network (ANKN) and the Indigenous
Studies program He stated that ANKN was at the top of the
webpage when soneone |ooked up "Alaska Native" on Google
and related that the network received 2 mllion "hits" on
its website each nonth. He noted that ANKN worked to bring
native ways of learning and teaching into schools. He
shared that the program had been grant funded in the past
and that it was seeking funding fromthe university for the
first time. He stated that the Indigenous Studies program
was the only one of its kind in the US. and that it was
garnering interest worldwide; it had graduated three PHD
students in the last two years.

2:46: 17 PM

G NNY  REDMOND, Dl RECTCR, STUDENT  SUPPORT  SERVI CES,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of including new
initiatives to inprove graduation rates at the University
of Alaska. She related that the funding would provide
conprehensive advising, inprove student retention, and
increase graduation rates for Ilimted incone students,
students whose parents did not have college degrees, and
students with disabilities. She furthered that the funding
would with enable the university to reach nore students and
pointed out that it was an econom c investnent that would
benefit state.

2:47:. 54 PM

SARA SM TH, ACADEM C COORDI NATOR, STUDENT SUPPORT SERVI CES,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
t el econf erence), expressed support of including new

initiatives to inprove graduation rates at the University
of Alaska. She stated that an investnent in disadvantaged
or at risk students would also be an investnent in national
security and Al aska's future. She explained that the US
would be nore conpetitive globally if its educated
wor kf orce cane from w thin. She discussed the values of the
STEM initiative and stated that funding would draw off the
strengths of existing prograns and infrastructure. She
noted that Al aska needed to have its "best and brightest™
| eading the way to devel oping and nanagi hg resources. She
concluded that many students would not have been able to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



graduate or attend college wthout the critical support
t hat school advi sors provided.

2:49: 39 PM

DANA KI NZY, | NTENSI VE ADVI SOR, STUDENT SUPPORT SERVI CES,
UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
t el econference), ur ged support for i ncl udi ng new

initiatives to inprove graduation rates at the University
of Al aska and pointed out that she would not have conpl eted
her degree without the help of a good counselor. She stated
that Alaska ranked last in the nation in sending its |ow
income, Pell grant eligible students to college. She
menti oned that 83 percent of students who attended coll ege
in Alaska stayed in the state and that the initiative would
provide incentives in the form of financial, notivational
and advising assistance. She offered that sonetinmes the
nost significant factor in student retention was a close
relationship with an advi sor.

2:51:48 PM

ELSIE VENT, CITY ADMN STRATOR, CITY COUNCIL, dCTY OF
HUSLI A, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), urged the passage
of SB 97 and expressed her support for the inclusion of
state revenue sharing in the proposed budget. She pointed
out that energy costs were going up dramatically in the
vil | ages.

2:52: 37 PM

EM LY VOCKEROTH, | MAG NATI ON LI BRARY, FAl RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of increasing the
base funding for Best Beginnings by $500,000. She stated
that Best Beginnings provided financial, technical, and
nor al support to conmunities. She shared that the
| magi nation Library in Fairbanks had supported new play
groups, developed a famly friendly website, hosted a
health and resource fair, and had grown its nenbership to
al nrost 3,500 chil dren.

2:53: 37 PM

GARA BRI DVEELL, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed support of adding $500,000 in funding to the Best
Begi nnings program and also supported the $250,000
increnent for the Parents as Teachers program

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



2:54:31 PM

NELLE  ANDREWS, PROGRAM  MANACGER, RURAL  APPRENTI CESHI P
OUTREACH PROCGRAM FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in
support of funding for the Rural Apprenticeship Qutreach
Program She stated that the Denali Comm ssion had funded
the programin the past, but that budget cuts would result
in a loss of funding and an end to the outreach programin
2013. She explained that the program worked wth young
rural Al askans to overcone the barriers of rural life. She
furthered that the program provided people with traveling
assistance, job training, |jobs references, enpl oynment
information, help with renote accessibility issues, and job
i ntervi ew assi st ance.

2:57:45 PM

SHI RLEY WLLIAMS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of adding $500,000 for the Best
Beginnings program in the proposed budget and also
supported the $250,000 for the Parents as Teachers program
She observed that the two prograns pronoted the inportance
of early learning, famly engagenent, and literacy. She
referenced the Babies on Track DVD and Baby Board Book Sets
that Best Beginnings had produced and shared that parents
were expressing interest in both products. She related the
ef fectiveness of the Parents as Teachers program and shared
that it received a lot of letters from parents who were
grateful for its services. She offered that children were
"our" future and that Best Beginnings was doing great
things for early chil dhood devel opnent.

3:01: 06 PM
AT EASE

3:17:35 PM
RECONVENED

3:17:55 PM

LUKE HOPKINS, NMAYOR, FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH (via
tel econference), testified in support of the operating
budget, state revenue sharing, and the D vision of Human
Services' Community Matching Block Gant. He expl ai ned that
Fai rbanks was struggling with the high costs of energy and
was experiencing a strain on its social service prograns as

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



a result. He hoped that revenue sharing could help to
address increasing energy cots in schools, governnment, and
other. He vocalized support for the university budget; he
pointed to UAF research that could help wth economc
devel opnent st at ew de.

3:21: 02 PM
RECESSED

3:39:11 PM
RECONVENED

KETCH KAN, SITKA, WRANGELL, PETERSBURG HOMER, DI LLI NGHAM
CCORDOVA

3:40: 16 PM

RI CHARD  CARLSON, SUPERI NTENDENT, KLAWODCK CITY SCHOOL
DISTRICT (via teleconference), testified in support of the
Parents as Teacher's program which has helped both
children and parents at young ages wth |anguage skills,
soci al devel opnent, and other cognitive abilities. He
mai ntained that a snmall investnment could render huge
results.

M CHELLE BRI CKER, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Southeast Al aska |ndependent
Living (SAIL) program She noted that SAIL hel ped her live
on her own.

3:43:12 PM

NAOM M CHALSEN, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, WOVEN | N SAFE HOVES
KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), expressed support of fully
funding the governor's increase for donmestic violence and
sexual assault prograns. She observed that their program
was at capacity and there was a struggle to keep up wth
bui |l di ng mai ntenance and health care costs. There was an
increase to over 5,000 shelter nights. She noted that the
program served 4,700 to 5,500 neal s.

CAROLI NE SM TH, MAYOR, CTY OF ALEKNAG K (via
tel econference), testified in support of state revenue
sharing and SB 97 funding. She stressed that energy costs
was the nunber one priority of the city; 80 percent of
t heir budgeted funds for the year had al ready been spent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 26 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



3:49: 01

DESERI E  BOND, SELF, D LLINGHAM (via tel econference),
testified in support of the Al aska Legal Services, which
hel ped her with donmestic violence and child custody issues.
She maintained that w thout the services she would not be
free from donestic viol ence.

KEN BERGVAN, SELF, HOMER (via teleconference), ur ged
continued support for Best Beginnings and early chil dhood
education. He stressed that <children are "our greatest
resource and early education would help children becone
val uabl e nmenbers of the Al askan society.

3:51:49 PM

KATY ADAMS, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the $200 thousand in the governor's budget for
i ndependent |iving services. She asked the conmttee to
consider increasing the program by another $200 thousand.
She recounted personal experiences.

VAL  ANGASAN, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, BRI STOL BAY  HOUSI NG
AUTHORI TY, DILLINGHAM (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for the rural job training program and
Al aska Wrks Partnership. He observed that the partnership
hel ped train weat heri zati on i nspectors and raters
t hroughout the state. Trainees maintained, renovated, built
and weat herized hones and public facilities. Training was
mobile and could be held anywhere in the state. He
enphasi zed that the Denali Comm ssion no |onger received
federal funds for training. The Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation trained between 100 to 200 people in Bristol
Bay since 2008.

3:55:10 PM

JANETTE  BURNHCFF, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference),
testified in support of Southeast Al aska |ndependent Living
program She noted that she had gone from being a consuner
to being an advocate and asked that funding be increased so
t hat nore people could be hel ped.

JAMES SW FT, COMVERCI AL FI SHERVAN, SI TKA (via
tel econference), urged an increase in Alaska Maritine
Safety Education Association (AMSEA) funding and related
that commercial fishing safety in Al aska had inproved over

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 27 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



the years. He stated that the inproved safety in Alaska's
commercial fishing industry was a result of AMBSEA s efforts
and stressed that AMSEA was the only program training
fishermen. He nmintained that AMSEA was responsible for a
decrease in fatalities.

3:57:38 PM

LI SA BUSCH, DI RECTOR, SITKA SOUND SCIENCE CENTER, SI TKA
(via teleconference), spoke in support of the proposed
increase for the marine transportation and fisheries
technology faculty positions [ University  of Al aska,
Sout heast's Marine Transportation Departnent]. She observed
that the program provided training for hatcheries and

fisheries managemnent . The program was di versi fying
econom es, building on strong existing economes, and was
usi ng part ner shi ps W th i ndustries and non-profit

organi zations to leverage their services. The departnent
al so worked in partnership with federal and state agencies.
Over a mllion dollars had been raised. She indicated that
there was a need for the program in other parts of the
state. There was demand for the program in western
communities that they were unable to nmeet due a |ack of
fundi ng. She asked for the funding increase to be raised to
$250, 000.

4:00: 27 PM

JERRY DZUGAN, ALASKA MARI NE SAFETY EDUCATI ON ASSCClI ATI ON

SITKA (via tel econference), supported the increased funding
for the Alaska Marine Safety Education Association's
request of $60,000. Further training could not be offered
at the <current funding level. Since 1985, AMSEA had
provided needed and required training to over 80
communities in Al aska. The training they provided was shown
to be partially responsible for the four fold decrease in
cormmercial fishing fatalities in Alaska since the 1980's

He nmaintained that funding was available through boat
registration receipts and the interest fromthe Fisherman's
Fund.

TOM MARSH, SELF, SITKA (via tel econference), urged support
for the Southeast Al aska University's Marine Transportation
Department. She stressed the inportance of the facility for
allowng her pursuit of a pilot's license. The facility
allowed her to practice inportant skills on a sinmulator.
The program included classes that allowed mariners to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 28 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



upgrade license and gain endorsenents, and increased the
ability of students to gain enploynent on ferries, tugs and
commer ci al craft in Al aska. She also supported the
increased funding for the Al aska Marine Safety Education
Associ ation program

4:04:11 PM

TAHNEE CURRAN, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), recounted
her |ifelong experience in Alaska' s fishing industry and
urged support of the Southeast Al aska University's Marine
Transportation Departnent. She pointed to the advantages of
an in-state educational program

4:05:41 PM

ROBERT PURVIS, BOARD MEMBER, SOUTHEAST ALASKA | NDEPENDENT
LIVING SITKA (via teleconference), testified in support of
the governor's $200,000 for independent 1iving. The
Sout heast Al aska |ndependent Living program helped him
becone i ndependent.

EMLY GUTHRIE, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Alaska Legal Servi ces
Corporation and the Wwnen in Safe Honmes program

4:09:36 PM

BETH LACRGCSSE, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for independent |iving
centers and the governor's request of $200 thousand for
expansi on. She nmintained that an additional $200 thousand
was needed for the program to reach outlying areas of the
st at e.

4:12:15 PM

KEVI N  GADSEY, ADVCOCATE, SOQUTHEAST  ALASKA | NDEPENDENT
LI VI NG, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), testified in
support of the SAIL program He stressed the need to
increase the program to reach nore clients. He observed
that SAIL had helped clients wth housing, social security
i ssues, and adaptive technology. The SAIL program hel ped
individuals with challenges, to find support, and provide
themwith services that could help them chart a course to a
new life.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 29 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



4:15:10 PM

BILL AUCGER, PRESI DENT, UNI TED SOUTHEAST G LLNETTERS
ASSCCI ATI ON, KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), testified in
support of fisheries prograns and thanked the commttee for
inclusion of funding for the Chil kat Lake fisheries study.
He expressed disappointnment that funding was not included
for the Hugh Smth weir in Southeast. He stressed the
i nportance of stock assessnent as the underpinnings of
managenent .

4:17:30 PM
RECESSED

4:32:50 PM
RECONVENED

BETHEL, KOIZEBUE, BARROW NOVE, DELTA JUNCTI QN, UNALASKA,
OFFNETS

4:33:51 PM

MELANI E  BAHNKE, VI CE- PRESI DENT, KAVWERAK, NOVE (via
tel econference), testified in support $200,000 for a 50
percent essential air service match to the comunity of
D onede. She stated that D onmede was one of the npbst renote
communities in the United States. D onede was |ocated on an
island in the Bering Sea, approximately one mle from the
Russi an border. Dionmede did not have a landing strip, but
only a landing pad for a helicopter. She stated that she
wor ked for Kawerak, which was a regional non-profit triba
consortium in the Bering Strait region, providing services
for 20 tribes in 15 communiti es.

Co- Chair Hof f man handed the gavel to Senator O son

4:36:36 PM

Acting Chair O son expressed gratitude for M. Bahnke for
addressing the Di onmede air service funding.

4:36:52 PM

LILY RAY, UAF RESILIENCE AND ADAPTATI ON PROGRAM NOVE (via
tel econference), testified 1in support of funding the
Resilience and Adaptation Program at UAF. She stated that
she worked in None as a social scientist. She felt that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 30 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



program was inmportant for Alaskans to understand | ocal
probl enms. She remarked that conparing community issues with
communities from across the country were not accurate
conparisons. She felt that incorrect information regarding
local issues was a problem in rural communities. She
explained that if there were not trained Al askans conpeting
for federal noney, the noney would go to another part of
t he country.

4:39: 00 PM

ELI ZABETH K JOHNSON, CHAI R- PERSON, NOVE | MAG NATI ON
LI BRARY, NOMVE (via teleconference), urged continued support
and requested an addition of $500,000 for Best Begi nnings.
She remarked that the Imagination Library was a program in
Best Beginnings, and stressed the inportance of early
chil dhood literacy.

4:41: 01 PM

Senator O son read a statenent from Ruth Emons in Nonme. He
stated that Ms. Emons would like to keep $200,000 for the
i ndependent living prograns. He stated that she would |ike
to see an additional $200,000 for the program

4:41: 21 PM

JUANI TA SM TH, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH HEALTH DEPARTIMVENT,
BARROW (via teleconference), voiced support for nental
health prograns. She encouraged education and training for
mental health care givers. She pointed out that sonme nental
health patients needed to | eave the state for proper nental
health treatnment, which was a high cost to the state.

JOSEPH DI NGVAN, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference), voiced
support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative $650,000
increnent to the Mental Health budget. He remarked that his
son had a severe behavioral problem and felt that proper
ment al heal th educati on was necessary.

Acting Chair O son handed the gavel to Co-Chair Hoffnan.

4:44:26 PM

SONI A HANDFORTH  KQOVE, UNALASKA CITY SCHOOL DI STRICT,
UNALASKA (via teleconference), testified in support of the
Al aska Performance Scholarship. She alleged that Al aska

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 31 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



needed educated and highly conpetent citizens who were
famliar wth the particular challenges of working and
living in Alaska. She explained that college students were

nost likely to live where they received their college
educati on.
4:45: 54 PM

M A KOVE, STUDENT, UNALASKA CITY SCHOOL, UNALASKA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the Al aska Performance
Schol arship. She relayed that many of her classmates were
wor ki ng t owar ds receiving t he Al aska Per f or mance
Schol arship. She reported that these classmates did not
have a chance of higher education wthout the Al aska
Per f ormance Schol ar shi p.

4:46: 47 PM

MARYBETH GREEN, EARLY CHI LDHOOD COORDI NATOR, LOVNER
KUSKCKW M SCHOOL DI STRI CT (LKSD) , BETHEL (via
tel econference), wurged continued support for the LKSD
Preschool Center. She explained that the current year was
the last year for all federally funded preschools. She

stated that LKSD had historically depended on federal
dollars to provide the effective preschool progranms. She
stated that research showed that students who attended
gquality preschools scored higher on state tests in third
grade, than those students who did not attend preschool
She stressed that early intervention was nore econonical
t han nedi ati on.

4:48:41 PM

APRI L BLEVINS, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding the LKSD Preschool Center. She expl ai ned
that her children had attended a LKSD preschool program
She remarked that two of her children showed remarkable
academ ¢ success, which she attributed to their attendance
of an LKSD preschool .

4:50: 28 PM

MARY C. PETE, CAMPUS DI RECTOR, KUSKOKW M CAMPUS, UNI VERSI TY
OF ALASKA, BETHEL (via teleconference), testified in
support of University of Alaska prograns. She explained
that approximately one-half of the Bethel census district
popul ati on was 25-years-old or younger. She specifically

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 32 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



nmenti oned the UAF |Indigenous Studies Ph.D. program the
Early Childhood Initiative, and the UAA Nursing Program

4:51:56 PM

M CHELLE DEW TT, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, TUNDRA  WOMEN S
COALITION (TWC), BETHEL (via teleconference), expressed
support of fully funding the governor's increase for
donmestic violence and sexual assault prograns, in the
amount of $475,500. She supported the funding, because
there were significant challenges related to utilities and
health insurance costs. She stated that the new energy
efficient building still faced increased costs, because of
the rapid increase in the cost of heating fuel.

4:53:21 PM

CECI LI A MARTZ, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), testified
in support of University of Al aska prograns, specifically
funding the Indigenous Studies Program at UAF. She stated
that the program would assure the future of the native
peopl e of Al aska. She stated that the program values the
native history, culture, |anguages, and traditions.

4:54: 36 PM

MONI CA CHARLES LElI NBERGER, SELF, BETHEL (via
tel econference), testified in support of early childhood
education funding. She remarked that rural Al aska did not
have access to many of the benefits that residents in other
parts of Alaska received. She explained that her children
were able to develop necessary educational and social
skills in their preschool, thanks to early childhood
educati on prograns.

4:56: 54 PM

ANTHONY CRAVALHO, SELF, KOTZEBUE (via teleconference),
voi ced support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative
$650, 000 increnent to the Mental Health budget. He stated
that he had an autistic son, and renmarked that the
Col | aborative would provide education, treatnent, and tools
t hat woul d support his son's success in the community.

4:59: 20 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 33 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



DEBBY EDWARDSON, PRESIDENT, NORTH SLOPE BCROUGH SCHOCOL
DI STRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION, BARROW (via teleconference),
testified in support of the $330,000 funding the North
Sl ope Bor ough School District curriculum alignnent
integration and mapping project. She specifically thanked
Senator Egan for adding the appropriation to the budget.
She stated that she had raised seven children in Barrow,
and she was passionate about education. She remarked that
it was critical to connect the talented and bright students
in Barrow that were in need of a connection with academc
| ear ni ng.

5:01:40 PM

Senator 4 son thanked Ms. Edwardson for her service on the
North Sl ope Borough School District Board of Education.

5:01:45 PM

PEGGY COMAN, SUPERI NTENDENT OF SCHOCLS, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRICT (via teleconference), testified in support
of the $330,000 funding the North Slope Borough School
District curriculum alignnent integration and napping
project. She urged continued support for Best Beginnings.
She spoke in strong support of increased funding for the
Base Student Allocation (BSA).

5:03: 04 PM

POLLY TOCKTQOOG, CHAI RPERSQON, BREVIG M SSION | MAG NATI ON
LI BRARY, BREVIG MSSION (via teleconference), ur ged
continued support for Best Beginnings. She furthered that
the Imagination Library was an inportant program for
encouragi ng childhood literacy. She encouraged an addition
of $500, 000 to the Best Begi nnings program

5:04:37 PM

JEANNE CGERHARDT- CYRUF, SELF, KAYANA (via teleconference),
voi ced support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative
$650,000 increnent to the Mental Heal th budget. She
expl ained that she was involved in many prograns related to
mental health issues. She stressed that the Collaborative
could build capacity in the rural areas of the state. She
explained that she had three children wth conplex
behavi oral issues, and pointed out that many people wth

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 34 03/28/ 12 8:44 A M



behavi or al issues were going out of state to seek
treat nent.

Acting Chair O son handed the gavel to Co-Chair Hoffnan.

5:07:42 PM

BRI DGET  ALI NE, BOARD MEMBER, ALZHEI MER S RESOURCE OF
ALASKA, BETHEL (via teleconference), testified in support
of funding the Alzheiner's Resource of Al aska. She
explained that there was a need for education, training,
and support for elderly care-givers. She explained that
many native elders were aging, and were facing Al zheiner's.
She stressed the need for travel noney.

5:10: 43 PM

JUDI TH JOHNSON, ALZHEI MER S RESOURCE OF ALASKA, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding the
Al zheimer's Resource of Alaska. She stated that she
currently had Al zheiner's disease. She explained that the
program had helped many people, including herself, and
hoped that the programwould continue to hel p peopl e.

5:12: 59 PM

SH RLY  MARQUARDT, CITY OF UNALASKA, UNALASKA (via
tel econference), testified in support of Revenue Sharing.
She spoke in support of SB 97. She felt that the program
woul d ease the cost of energy in her conmunity.

Co- Chair Hof f man handed the gavel to Senator O son

5:14: 50 PM

MARJORI E  STRAUSS, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding the Alaska Legal Services
Corporation. She also expressed support of fully funding
the governor's increase for donestic violence and sexual
assault prograns.

Co-Chair Hoffman noted that the Senate version of HB 284
included a $200,000 increase to what the governor had
requested for donmestic violence and sexual assaul t
progr ans.

5:16:17 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 35 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



NI CKI  SHELTON, TRAINER, PARENTS AS TEACHERS, HOONAH (via
tel econference), testified 1in support of funding the
Parents as Teachers prograns. She stated that children who
participated in the Parents as Teachers program achieved
success in the kindergarten readiness skills assessnents,
and the benefits lasted through at least third grade. She
relayed a story about a father who noticed that all of the
children from the Parents as Teachers programin his son's
third grade class received academ ¢ awards.

5:18: 55 PM

DAVE TALERI CO, MAYER, DENALI BOROUGH, HEALY (via
tel econference), spoke in support of Revenue Sharing. He
testified in support of SB 97. He asserted that high energy
costs were affecting the entire state.

5:20:18 PM

JEANETTE DAVI S, | NDEPENDENT LI VI NG, HOVER (via
tel econference), testified in support of the $200,000 for
the independent |iving program she and shared the
i nportance of its services in her life. She was 76-years-
old, and felt that the independent I|iving program pronoted
choi ces, independence, and a high quality of Iife. She

remarked that the program enabled her to attend coll ege,
and provi ded val uabl e resources to maintain her health.

5:22:12 PM

ANI TA VAN DYCK, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the SAIL services in Sitka. She reported eight
years prior, she unexpectedly |ost her short-term nenory.
Thanks to the services that SAIL provided, she was able to
live in her home wthout being a burden on her children.
She noted that she volunteers for four di fferent
organi zations in her comunity, as a way of expressing her
gratitude for the services that SAIL provided.

5:23:10 PM

ALAVI NI LATA, SELF, JUNEAU (via teleconference), voiced
support for the Conplex Behavioral Collaborative $650,000
increment to the Mental Health budget. He explained that
his disabled son would be able to take advantage of the
benefits of the Collaborative. He explained that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 36 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



$650, 000 woul d provide consultation and training services
for community providers to serve individuals wth
disabilities wth challenging behaviors such as aggression,
i nappropriate sexual behaviors, and self-harm He shared a
personal experience about his son's inappropriate behavior
during puberty. He <concluded that there was previous
testinmony that echoed his perspective.

5:25: 05 PM

RON JOHNSQON, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
about the problems with the $11 billion unfunded liability
in the State of Alaska Retirenent and Benefits. He felt
that a level-dollar pay-down nethod was the best way to
ensure financial success. He felt that in the near future,
the focus of the budget would be applying paynents to the
unfunded liability.

5:26: 42 PM

FRANCI S KELLY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the Alzheinmer's Resource of Al aska.
She stated that the funding would provide education for
caregivers, and assistance for famlies of Al zheinmer's
patients. She remarked that she was able to care for her
father, because of the Alzheinmer's Resource of Al aska
program

5:28:49 PM

CARROL LYBERGER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding the Al zheinmer’s D sease or
Rel ated Disorders (ADRD). She remarked that she had
submtted a letter highlighting her perspective and
experience (copy on file).

Acting Chair O sen handed the gavel to Co-Chair Hoffnan.

CSHB 284(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 285(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 37 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



5:30:11 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:30 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 38 03/ 28/ 12 8:44 A M



